

CITY OF MARLBOROUGH OFFICE OF CITY CLERK Lisa M. Thomas 140 Main St. Marlborough, MA 01752 (508) 460-3775 FAX (508) 460-3723

DECEMBER 4, 2017

Regular meeting of the City Council held on Monday, December 4, 2017 at 8:00 PM in City Council Chambers, City Hall. City Councilors Present: Clancy, Juaire, Oram, Ossing, Robey, Delano, Doucette, Elder, Tunnera, Irish and Landers. Meeting adjourned at 9:15 PM.

- ORDERED: That the Minutes of the City Council meeting NOVEMBER, 27, 2017, **FILE**; adopted.
- ORDERED: That the PUBLIC HEARING on the Application for Special Permit to construct an Ancillary Residential Community in a single 28-unit building to be built at 615 Williams Street in conjunction with the Village at Crane Meadow Retirement Community, Order No. 17-1007054, OPENED AND CONTINUED, WITH NO TESTIMONY BEING HEARD, UNTIL JANUARY 8, 2018 CITY COUNCIL MEETING; adopted.

Ordered that the Communication from Attorney Bergeron, Mirick O'Connell re: Public Hearing be opened then continued to the first working meeting in January 2018 be read by City Clerk-Carries.

Councilors Present: Clancy, Delano, Doucette, Elder, Tunnera, Irish, Landers, Juaire, Oram, Ossing & Robey.

ORDERED: That the **JOINT TAX CLASSIFICATION PUBLIC HEARING** with the Board of Assessors to determine the percentage of the local tax levy to be borne by each class of property for Fiscal Year 2018. Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40, Section 56 sets forth the procedures and responsibilities under the law, all were heard who wish to be heard, hearing recessed at 8:50 PM.

Councilors Present: Clancy, Delano, Doucette, Elder, Tunnera, Irish, Landers, Juaire, Oram, Ossing & Robey.

ORDERED: That the transfer of \$25,300.00 (twenty-five thousand, three hundred dollars) from Sale of Graves to Reduce the FY2018 Tax Levy, **APPROVED**; adopted.

FROM: Acct. # 27000-33020 Sale of Graves	\$25,300.00
TO: To reduce 2018 Tax Levy	\$25,300.00

ORDERED: That the transfer of \$679,906.48 (six hundred seventy-nine thousand, nine hundred six dollars & forty-eight cents) from Overlay Reserve to reduce the FY2018 Tax Levy, **APPROVED**; adopted.

FROM:	
Acct. # 10000-32200	\$679,906.48
Overlay Reserve	
TO:	

To reduce 2018 Tax Levy

\$679,906.48

- ORDERED: That the residential factor of 0.807362 which results in a CIP shift factor of 1.42 and produces, based upon the Fiscal Year 2018 Tax Levy, a residential tax rate of \$14.63 and a commercial tax rate of \$25.73, **APPROVED**; adopted.
- ORDERED: That the Communication from Mayor re: Library Project transfer request in the amount of \$245,300.00 which moves funds from Undesignated to Land Acquisition to support the library renovation project, refer to **FINANCE COMMITTEE**; adopted.
- ORDERED: Under authority of MGL Chapter 44, Section 53A, the City Council hereby **APPROVES** the Retail Program Standards grant in the amount of \$6,970.00 from the National Association of City & County Health Officials, awarded to the Board of Health, which will fund peer-to-peer assistance and technical support to improve our food protection program; adopted.
- ORDERED: That the Appointment of Joseph Bisol to the Council on Aging for a term of four years, refer to **PERSONNEL COMMITTEE**; adopted.

2

ORDERED: That a petition to the General Court, accompanied by a bill for a special law relating to the city of Marlborough to be filed with an attested copy of this order, be, and hereby is, approved under Clause (1) of Section 8 of Article 2, as amended, of the Amendments to the Constitution of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, to the end that legislation be adopted precisely as follows, except for clerical or editorial changes of form only:

An act authorizing the city of Marlborough to grant additional licenses for the sale of alcoholic beverages not to be drunk on the premises.

SECTION 1. (a) Notwithstanding section 17 of chapter 138 of the General Laws, the licensing authority of the city of Marlborough may grant 2 additional licenses for the sale of all alcoholic beverages not to be drunk on the premises pursuant to section 15 of said chapter 138. A license granted pursuant to this act shall be subject to the conditions set by the said licensing authority and shall be subject to all of said chapter 138 except said section 17.

(b) The licensing authority of the said city shall not approve the transfer of a license granted pursuant to this act to any other person, partnership, corporation, limited liability company, organization or other entity or to any other location.

(c) If a license granted pursuant to this act is cancelled, revoked, or no longer in use at the location of original issuance, the license shall be returned physically, with all of the legal rights, privileges and restrictions pertaining thereto, to the licensing authority of the said city and the said licensing authority may then grant the license to a new applicant at the same location under the same conditions as authorized in this act if the applicant files with the said licensing authority a letter from the department of revenue and a letter from the department of unemployment assistance indicating that the license is in good standing with those departments and that all applicable taxes, fees and contributions have been paid.

SECTION 2. This act shall take effect upon its passage.

Refer to LEGISLATIVE AND LEGAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE; adopted.

- ORDERED: That the Communication from City Solicitor, Donald Rider, re: Application for Special Permit from Mina Property Group LLC, Auto Max, to construct a commercial automotive facility on less than 1 acre of land at 408 Maple Street, in proper legal form, Order No. 17-1006800G, **MOVED TO ITEM 17**; adopted.
- ORDERED: That the Communication from Attorney Bergeron, Mirick O'Connell re: Proposed Eminent Domain Taking & Related Matters Concerning Parcels on and off Howe and Valley Streets, Order No. 17-1007065-1-2-3, **FILE**; adopted.
- ORDERED: That the Communication from Attorney Bourbeau, Drohan Tocchio & Morgan, P. C. re: Proposed Eminent Domain Taking and Related Matters Concerning Parcels on and off Howe and Valley Streets, Order No. 17-1007065-1-2-3, **FILE**; adopted.
- ORDERED: That the Communication from James Knott, Riverdale Power & Electric Co., Inc. re: Riverdale Mills Hydroelectric Project, **FILE**; adopted.
- ORDERED: That the Communication from Attorney Beattie re: Black Horse Subdivision (Slocumb Lane), refer to **PUBLIC SERVICES COMMITTEE, PLANNING BOARD & LEGAL DEPARTMENT**; adopted.

ORDERED: That the Minutes, Board of Assessors, September 27, 2017, FILE; adopted.

ORDERED: That the following CLAIMS, refer to the LEGAL DEPARTMENT; adopted.

a. Alyssa Hansen, 218 West Hill Road, other property damage.

Reports of Committees:

Councilor Ossing requested a Suspension of the Rules-Carries to introduce a Communication from Colonial Power Group to update the Councilors and public pertinent to the Municipal Aggregation Plan. The communication has been placed on the City's website. Motion made by Councilor Ossing to accept and place on FILE; adopted.

Councilor Irish reported the following out of the Public Safety Committee:

Meeting Name: <u>City Council Public Safety Committee</u> Date: <u>November 28, 2017</u> Location: City Council Chamber, 2nd Floor, City Hall, 140 Main Street

Convened: 5:30 PM – Adjourned: 5:49 PM Present: Chairman Irish; Public Safety Committee Members Councilors Tunnera and Ossing; Councilors Clancy, Doucette, Juaire, and Robey Also Present: Police Chief David Giorgi; Thomas DiPersio (City Engineer)

Order No. 17-1006815: The City Council acceptance of two provisions of M.G.L. Chapter 90, Section 17C and Section 18B, which will enable the City to reduce the speed limit in thickly settled districts to 25 miles per hour and enable the City to create safety zones with a 20 mile per hour speed limit.

The Public Safety Committee met with Police Chief David Giorgi, who is also Chair of the Traffic Commission, and City Engineer Thomas DiPersio for a discussion of M.G.L. Chapter 90, Sections 17C and 18B, which would allow the City to reduce the speed limit in thickly settled districts. Police Chief Giorgi explained a change in state law allows the City to change the speed limit in certain zones without having to receive state approval for each wanted change. There are two types of speed laws, Ch.90, §17 are statutory and allow municipalities having thickly settled areas or business districts to reduce speed limits from 30 miles per hour to 25 miles per hour; Ch.90 §18 are regulatory and allow municipalities the ability to create posted speed limits of 20 miles per hour after following required mandates as stated in the statue to establish a "safety zone".

Councilor Ossing confirmed that by approving this order, the City would have more control over thickly settled areas by going through the Traffic Commission who would refer the request to Engineering for review to ensure the street in question conformed to the M.G.L. definition of a thickly settled area. He supported the acceptance of these provisions if they are done on a case by case basis and not as a blanket change throughout the City. Police Chief Giorgi agreed with Councilor Ossing and confirmed that was the preference of the Traffic Commission as well, that each change be made only after a study of an area has been done and results warrant a change to that street's speed limit.

Reports of Committee Cont'd:

Councilor Ossing specified there was a typographical error in the proposed order under Section 17C of Chapter 90, part (b), line three references "section 1" but it should be "section 17".

Motion made by Councilor Ossing, seconded by Councilor Tunnera, to approve as amended. The motion carried 3-0.

Motion made and seconded to adjourn. The motion carried 3-0. The meeting adjourned at 5:49 PM.

Councilor Tunnera reported the following out of the Personnel Committee:

Meeting Name: <u>City Council Personnel Committee</u> Date: <u>November 28, 2017</u> Location: <u>City Council Chamber, 2nd Floor, City Hall, 140 Main Street</u>

Convened: 5:51 PM – Adjourned: 5:59 PM Present: Chairman Tunnera; Personnel Committee Member Councilor Irish; Councilors Clancy, Ossing, and Robey Absent: Councilor Elder

Order No. 17-1007051: The Appointment of William Dunbar to the Conservation Commission for a three-year term. William Dunbar was unable to attend the meeting and his appointment remained in committee and will be taken up at the Personnel Committee's next meeting.

Order No. 17-1007052: The Appointment of Councilor Michael Ossing to the Council on Aging Board for a four-year term. Recommendation of the Personnel Committee is to approve the appointment of Councilor Michael Ossing to the Council on Aging Board. Motion made by Councilor Irish, seconded by the Chair, to approve the appointment of Councilor Michael Ossing. The motion carried 2-0.

Motion made by Councilor Irish, seconded by the Chair, to adjourn. The motion carried 2-0. The meeting adjourned at 5:59 PM.

ORDERED: That City Council Order Numbers, 17-1007065-1, 7065-2 & 7065-3 – bulleted as follows:

(1) Proposed Order of Taking by Eminent Domain which concerns two contiguous parcels of land located on and off Howe and Valley Streets. The purpose of the taking is to create pedestrian access to the Corporal Christos Pappas Playground on John Street.

(2) Proposed order would transfer care, management and control of the land the Department of Public Works, which would create and maintain the pedestrian access.

(3) Proposed Order of Transfer Between Open Space Stabilization Account and Open Space Acquisition Account would appropriate the compensation awards relating to the taking. Motion made and seconded to transfer \$5,700.00 from the Open Space Stabilization Account to the Open Space Acquisition Account.

DENIED; adopted.

Yea: 5 - Nay: 6 Yea: Delano, Elder, Irish, Clancy, & Robey. Nay: Doucette, Tunnera, Landers, Juaire, Oram, & Ossing.

ORDERED:

Special Permit Mina Property Group LLC New England Auto Max, Inc., dba AutoMax Service Center Order No. 17-1006800H

DECISION ON AN APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL PERMIT

The City Council of the City of Marlborough hereby GRANTS the application for a Special Permit to Mina Property Group, LLC (Applicant) and New England Auto Max, Inc. dba AutoMax Service Center (Tenant), each having a usual place of business at 400 Maple Street and 386 Maple Street, respectively, Marlborough, Massachusetts 01752 as provided in the Decision and subject to the following Procedural Findings, Findings of Facts and Conditions:

PROCEDURAL FINDINGS

- 1. Mina Property Group LLC is a limited liability company organized, existing and in good standing under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, having a usual place of business at 400 Maple Street, Marlborough (hereinafter referred to as the "Applicant").
- 2. New England Auto Max, Inc., dba AutoMax Service Center, is a corporation organized, existing and in good standing under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, having a usual place of business at 386 Maple Street, Marlborough (hereinafter referred to as the "Tenant").

- 3. The Applicant is the owner of land in Marlborough, MA shown as Lots #7 and #8 in Plan Book #56, Plan # 20, dated November 23, 1887 and recorded in the Middlesex South District Registry of Deeds, said land being owned by the Applicant described in said Registry of Deeds in Book 44518, Page 294. Said Lots #7 and #8 are further known as 408 Maple Street, Marlborough, MA, as shown on the City of Marlborough Assessors Maps as a portion of Map 93, Parcel 65 (hereinafter referred to as the "Site").
- 4. The Applicant, on or about January 23, 2017, filed with the City Clerk of the City of Marlborough, an Application To City Council for Issuance of Special Permit (hereinafter referred to as the "Application") under the Ordinances of the City of Marlborough, Article VI Section 650-18.A, paragraph 25, to permit Tenant to conduct a business owned and operated by Tenant for the service, repair and minor refinishing of automotive cars and trucks on land owned by the Applicant on 16,816 square feet +/- of land located at 408 Maple Street being Lots #7 and #8 referenced in paragraph 3 above (the "Project").
- 5. The Site is located in the Commercial Automotive zoning district of the City of Marlborough and is subject to the Zoning Ordinance Chapter 650-18.A, paragraph 25 for commercial automotive use on less than an acre of land.
- 6. The Application consisted of an original and two copies of the following: (a) Application to the City Council for Issuance of Special Permit; (b) Filing Fee check in the amount of \$500.00; (c) Plan Delivery Certification; (d) Tax Payment Certification; (e) Abutters List; (f) Site Plan (the "Site Plan"); and (g) Planning Department Certification (collectively, the "Documents"), which Documents are incorporated herein and become a part of this decision. Twelve sets of documents were delivered to the City Council and one set each to the Police Chief, the Fire Chief, the City Planner (Building Commissioner), the City Engineer and the Conservation Officer, all in accordance with Chapter 650, Section 650-18.A, paragraph 25, and Section 650-59 of the Zoning Code of the City of Marlborough. The Abutters List was updated as of January 1, 2017, and filed with the City Clerk.
- 7. The Applicant filed with the Application a Certificate of Completeness of Application on a form signed by the Building Commissioner on behalf of the City Planner for the City of Marlborough.
- 8. Under the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40A, on January 10, 2017 Applicant filed with the City Clerk to be placed on the City Council Agenda for January 23, 2017 the Application for a Special Permit. At the January 23, 2017 meeting, the Council voted to schedule a public hearing to be held on February 27, 2017.

- 9. In accordance with the Rules and Regulations of the City Council and Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40A Sections 9 and 11, the City Council established February 27, 2017 as the date for a public hearing on the Application, caused to be advertised notice of said hearing and the date thereof in the MetroWest Daily News and mailed said notice to those entitled thereto, all in accordance with Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40A.
- 10. The Marlborough City Council held a public hearing on the Application on February 27, 2017 in accordance with the published notice (the "Public Hearing"). The hearing was opened at the time provided for in the notice and following the completion of testimony the hearing was closed on said date. The Applicant timely requested the Council to grant, and was timely granted, extensions of time for the Council to take final action on the application up to and including May 12, 2017, September 12, 2017, and December 18, 2017.
- 11. The Applicant presented testimony at the Public Hearing detailing the construction to be performed on the Site, including site work, drainage and the construction of the building, especially as it pertained to automotive service and repair, and such issues with the City Council and members of the public deemed appropriate. Members of the public had the opportunity to testify at the public hearing and there was no public input.
- 12. The Applicant provided written and oral documentation and testimony to the City Council and the City Council's Urban Affairs and Housing Committee ("Urban Affairs") regarding the Site, traffic impacts, landscaping, drainage, lighting, water and sewer use, and other utilities associated with the Site.
- 13. AutoMax Service Center (Tenant) currently conducts its business at 386 Maple Street, Marlborough, MA.
- 14. The Site is located on Route 85 (408 Maple Street) and is bounded to the west by Maple Street, and to the east by River Street.
- 15. The Site is less than 1/2 acre (16,816 square feet +/-) and is located within the Commercial Automotive Zone. According to the Building Commissioner, the Project proposes a use which is allowed by special permit in the Commercial Automotive zoning district on land less than 1 acre.
- 16. According to the Building Commissioner, the Project meets all requirements of the City's Zoning Ordinance.
- 17. The Project consists of one building of approximately twenty-five hundred (2,500) square feet and will be located as shown on the Site Plan.
- 18. According to the Applicant, natural gas is available to serve the Project.
- 19. According to the Applicant, telephone, electricity and cable TV services are all available to serve the Project.

- 20. According to the Applicant, the Site Plan provides for proper management of storm water runoff from the project; proposed runoff rates are less than or equal to but do not exceed existing; there will be no adverse impact to any surrounding areas; the drain systems have been properly designed to handle the design flow rates; and reduced TSS results in improved quality of storm water runoff to receiving areas.
- 21. According to the Applicant, all buildings will be constructed in accordance with the latest life safety and building codes.
- 22. The Applicant will maintain all walkways, driveways and storm drainage structures.

BASED UPON THE ABOVE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARLBOROUGH MAKES THE FOLLOWING FINDINGS OF FACT:

- A. The City Council finds that it may grant a special permit (the "Special Permit") subject to such terms and conditions as it deems necessary and reasonable to protect the citizens of the City of Marlborough (also referenced herein as the "City").
- B. The City Council finds the Application for the Special Permit does not derogate from the intent or purpose of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Marlborough, or General Laws c. 40A.
- C. The City Council finds that the use of the Site for the Project is an appropriate use, and is in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Marlborough. The construction of the Project will complement the business nature of the abutting properties and the surrounding neighborhood.
- D. The Site Plan, as submitted, and as may be amended by Site Plan Review Committee during the site plan review process, provides improvements that will protect the environment such as improved drainage, a gas/oil separator, landscaping, etc. The City Council makes this determination subject to the completion and adherence by the Applicant to the approved site plan by the Site Plan Review Committee and the conditions more fully set forth herein.
- E. The Applicant has complied with all the procedural rules and regulations of the City Council of the City of Marlborough and Chapter 650 (Zoning Code) of the City of Marlborough and Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40A, Sections 9 and 11.

GRANT OF SPECIAL PERMIT WITH CONDITIONS

The City Council of the City of Marlborough, pursuant to its authority under Chapter 650 (Zoning Code) of the Code of the City of Marlborough and Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40A, GRANTS to the Applicant a Special Permit to construct the Project as set forth in the Application documents and as per the Site Plan submitted to the City Council, and subject to the following conditions which shall be binding on the Applicant, its successors and assigns, as well as on the Tenant:

- <u>Construction</u>. Construction of all structures on the Site is to be in accordance with all building codes and zoning regulations in effect in the City of Marlborough and Commonwealth of Massachusetts and shall be built according to the Site Plan entitled, "Mina Property Group, 408 Maple Street, Marlborough, MA Preliminary Site Plan," prepared by: Whitman & Bingham Assoc., Inc. Civil Engineering & Land Surveying Mechanic Street Marlborough, MA 01453 Tel: 978-537-5296; dated: January 25, 2016, last revised: December 19, 2016, and filed with the Application and as may have been amended during the application process. The Applicant's Site Plan indicates a permitted building area where the proposed building is to be located.
- 2. <u>Compliance with Local State and Federal Laws</u>. The Applicant shall comply with all applicable rules, regulations and ordinances of the City of Marlborough, Commonwealth of Massachusetts and Federal Agencies as they may apply to the construction, maintenance and operation of the Project, including, without limitation, compliance with local Conservation Commission Orders, the Massachusetts Environmental Policy Act (MEPA), and the State Building Code. The terms and conditions of such decisions and findings will become a part of this decision.
- 3. <u>Site Plan Review</u>. The issuance of the Special Permit is further subject to detailed Site Plan Review, in accordance with the City of Marlborough Code, prior to issuance of the Building Permit. Any additional changes, alterations, modifications or amendments as required by Site Plan Review shall become further conditions to this Special Permit and no occupancy permit shall be issued until all conditions are complied with by the Applicant. Site Plan Review shall be consistent with this Special Permit. Any violation of a condition of the Site Plan Approval shall be a violation of this Special Permit.
- 4. <u>Utilities Review</u>. The detailed review of on-Site and off-Site utilities will be performed as part of the Site Plan Review process and such utilities as may be required by the City Engineer during this review shall be provided. The Applicant will deliver to the City Engineer, prior to the commencement of construction of the water and sewer improvements, copies of the final plans and schedule of work of such improvements for final review and approval by the City Engineer.

- 5. <u>Off-Site Improvements</u>. In connection with the installation of improvements within public rights-of-way which requires a street opening permit, the City Engineer shall be provided by Applicant with a schedule of work and the construction procedures to be utilized prior to the commencement of such work. A police detail shall be provided for any utility work performed within the public way on Route 85 (Maple Street).
- 6. <u>Construction Traffic</u>. During construction of the Project, the Applicant shall impose on each of its contractors a requirement that all heavy equipment accessing the Site shall use River Street to access the Project as recommended by the Site Plan Review Committee.
- 7. <u>Inspectional Services Mitigation.</u> Applicant shall, prior to issuance of the building permit for the Project, provide a payment to the City of Marlborough Inspectional Services fund in the amount of three hundred (\$300.00) dollars to offset the increases in costs associated with the Project. The City shall expend said funds as needed to contract for temporary staff, materials, supplies and equipment so as to enable the Inspections Staff to provide adequate and timely inspections of the Project construction.
- Hazardous Waste/Flammable/Combustible Materials. (a) The Applicant shall 8. comply with all directives by the Department of Environmental Protection of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, the Conservation Commission, the Fire Chief, and the Department of Public Works of the City of Marlborough relative to the existence and handling of any hazardous waste, toxic chemicals, flammable or combustible materials which may be located on the Site, and shall comply with the provisions of M.G.L. Chapter 21E, Chapter 510 Sewers of the Code of the City of Marlborough and any other applicable government codes and as they relate to the use or disposal of hazardous materials, hazardous waste, toxic chemicals, flammable or combustible materials; (b) Any hazardous materials, hazardous waste, toxic chemicals, flammable or combustible materials (motor oil, lubricants, anti-freeze, etc.) that may be delivered to the Site will be stored and handled and disposed of in a good practices manner and in compliance with all Federal, State and local laws and in accord with the directives of the Marlborough Fire Department; (c) Hazardous materials, hazardous waste (waste oil, etc.), toxic chemicals, flammable or combustible materials that will be stored on the Site will be those used in the normal course of business connected with operating a vehicle maintenance and repair facility .
- 9. <u>Spill Prevention and Control Plan</u>. A spill prevention and control plan, noting how hazardous and toxic materials are to be stored, transported, and disposed of, shall be provided by the Applicant to, and approved by, the City Conservation Officer and the Fire Department. Any spills that may occur on-Site will be responded to as required by the Massachusetts DEP and Fire Department. Standard Control procedures as set forth by these agencies will be strictly adhered to by Applicant.

11

- 10. <u>Abatement</u>. The doors to the service bays shall be kept closed except to allow vehicles to enter or to exit the service bays.
- 11. <u>Detention Basins</u>. There will be no retention or detention basins on-Site.
- 12. <u>Catch Basins</u>. All catch basins and subsurface infiltration systems shall be installed by the Applicant in accordance with the City Code or as required by the Site Plan Review Committee, as more fully shown on the Site Plan. The catch basins shall be monitored on an annual basis with reports given to the City Engineer and the Conservation Agent. The catch basins are to be cleaned by the Applicant annually, or at more frequent intervals as determined by the City Engineer and the Conservation Agent. The existing catch basins and all drainage structures shall be monitored by Applicant on an annual basis, per the storm water operation and maintenance plan to be developed by Applicant, with a written report given to the City Engineer and Conservation Commission by June 1st of each year. The catch basins are to be cleaned by Applicant when debris buildup is within 24 inches of the pipe invert to remain functioning properly.
- 13. <u>Water-Sewer</u>. Water and sewer services provided to the Project shall be subject to currently applicable citywide water and sewer policies and charges subject to annual adjustment by the Commissioner of Public Works. Applicant shall develop an on-Site water supply for irrigation purposes may only be permitted, upon demonstration by the Applicant to the City Engineer, that on-Site supplies are inadequate, due to quantity or quality.
- 14. <u>Parking Areas</u>. (i) Parking areas will be maintained by Applicant, as necessary. (ii) Pursuant to the provisions of M.G.L. c. 90, § 18, the Applicant shall submit a written request and grant of authority to the Marlborough Traffic Commission to promulgate legally enforceable rules and regulations for the control of on-Site traffic and parking. Applicant shall be responsible for providing, installing and maintaining all signage or markings required by the Commission. Such signage or markings shall meet the standards of the Uniform Manual of Traffic Control Devices.
- 15. <u>Maximum Number of Vehicles</u>. There shall be a maximum of 25 vehicles allowed as shown on the Site Plan, with employee parking to be located closest to River Street in the 3 double stacked spaces designated and labeled "Employee Parking Only".
- 16. <u>Labeled Parking Spaces</u>. Parking spaces at the front of the site shall be clearly labeled for Handicap parking and Customer Drop Off and Pick Up. In order to prohibit customers from using or having access to the stacked parking area, Applicant shall erect and maintain proper signage stating that the spaces in the stacked parking area are for AutoMax Service Center Personnel only.
- 17. <u>Parking Area Lighting</u>. All illuminations of individual parking area light fixtures shall not exceed 250-watt fixtures and shall be screened from abutting property. Deflectors shall be utilized and configured to mitigate light from entering abutting properties.

- 18. <u>Site Access and Egress</u>. Access to the building and parking will be off Maple Street (Route 85) (one-way entrance) and exit onto River Street (one-way exit) as shown on the Site Plan and requested by the Police Chief and Site Plan Review Committee. The Site shall be designed, and signage created, to specify enter "one way in" from Maple Street (Route 85) and exit "one way out" onto River Street.
- 19. <u>Building</u>. The building to be constructed on the Site shall be a freestanding steel building with metal siding and a proposed stone veneer in the front "customer" area of the building, and shall conform to a plan entitled, "AutoMax Vehicle Maintenance Building, 408 Maple Street, Marlborough, Massachusetts," prepared by: Haynes Lieneck and Smith Inc., Architects; dated: November 22, 2017, and attached hereto as Exhibit 1. There will be 5 service bays. The siding and service doors shall be similar in style and design to the siding and doors currently used at AutoMax Service Center. The operation of the business shall be conducted within the facility as to not create abnormal noise or nuisance on the Site. There shall be no external storage of junk vehicles or parts. There shall be minor repair and paint work done on vehicles at this location; however, no major auto body operation involving insurance type collision work shall be allowed to be conducted on-Site.
- 20. <u>Signage</u>. All Site signage erected on the subject property shall be consistent with low profile entrance and exit signage that is consistent with lighting, size, layout and design, including fonts, as signage requested and approved by the City Council. As shown on the building plan (Exhibit 1) referenced in condition 19 above, the signage will be mounted on the building with internal illumination that meets the lighting criteria as set forth in the review of the Site Plan. All signage at the subject location shall comply with the existing City of Marlborough sign ordinance, without variance. The freestanding sign for the Site shall conform to a plan, entitled "Freestanding Sign, 408 Maple Street, Marlborough, Massachusetts," prepared by: Haynes Lieneck and Smith Inc., Architects; dated: November 22, 2017, and attached hereto as Exhibit 2.
- 21. <u>Landscaping</u>. Pursuant to Chapter 270 of the Marlborough City Code, the Project shall be subject to Site Plan Review at which time, and under which procedure, changes and alterations to the Site Plan may be incorporated. The Project landscaping shall be implemented as shown on the Site Plan submitted with the Application as may be amended during Site Plan Review. The Site Plan Review staff shall determine whether the planted landscaping is adequate and, if the staff determines that it is not, they shall have the authority to require reasonable landscaping changes to assure that the Project's building is not significantly visible from Maple Street.
- 22. <u>Dumpster</u>. The on-Site dumpster shall be properly screened so as to create an aesthetic element to the Site and abutting properties as set forth in the City of Marlborough ordinance. Due to the nature of the Site, parking layout and dumpster pick-up the Site design requires that the dumpster be located at the rear of the Site towards River Street.

13

- 23. <u>Snow Storage</u>. Snow storage is to be provided on-Site as shown on the Site Plan. The Applicant shall remove accumulations exceeding 6" or more during any snowstorm event to an off-Site storage area. Snowmelt runoff is to be directed toward catch basins. On-site storage shall not be permitted that will create a nuisance to abutting properties.
- 24. <u>Hours of Operation</u>. The hours of operation will be Monday through Friday 8am-6pm, Saturday 8am-3pm, and Sunday – Closed.
- 25. <u>Vehicle Sales Prohibited</u>. At no time, can there be vehicles presented for sale on this Site.
- 26. <u>Tractor Trailer Deliveries and Pickups Prohibited</u>. No vehicles are to be delivered or picked up via tractor trailer to this Site at any time.
- 27. <u>Plans, Photos, Renderings, etc.</u> All plans, photo renderings, site evaluations, briefs and other documentation provided by the Applicant as part of this Special Permit Application and as amended during the application/hearing process before the City Council and/or the City Council's Urban Affairs Committee are herein incorporated into and become a part of this Special Permit and become conditions and requirements of the same, unless otherwise altered by the City Council.
- 28. <u>As-Built Plans</u>. Applicant shall provide to the City's Building Commissioner asbuilt plans for the Site prior to the issuance of an Occupancy Permit.
- 29. <u>Occupancy Permit Prerequisites</u>. Prior to the issuance of any Permanent Occupancy Permit ("Occupancy Permit") for this Project, Applicant must complete all landscaping, architectural design and planting installation together with all other site improvements, unless, in the opinion of the Site Plan Review Committee, weather is prohibitive in which case landscaping and planting installation shall be completed within a reasonable time, but no more than 6 months from the issuance of the Occupancy Permit, taking into consideration the weather conditions.
- 30. <u>Recording</u>. In accordance with the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws c. 40A, § 11, Applicant at its expense shall record this Special Permit in the Middlesex South Registry of Deeds after the City Clerk has certified that the twenty-day period for appealing this Special Permit has elapsed with no appeal having been filed, and before a Building Permit is issued. Applicant shall also furnish proof of recording to the City Solicitor's Office and the City Council immediately subsequent to recording.

Yea: 11 – Nay: 0 Yea: Delano, Doucette, Elder, Tunnera, Irish, Clancy, Landers, Juaire, Oram, Ossing & Robey.

ORDERED: There being no further business, the regular meeting of the City Council is herewith adjourned at 9:15 PM.